
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 

Cornell L. Harvey, Mayor    City Attorney 
Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem  Brian D. Corry 
John A. Cason III, Commissioner 
Julie T. Martin, Commissioner              City Manager 
Vincent T. Williams, Commissioner   Regina M. McDuffie 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021 AT 6:00 P.M. 

HYBRID MEETING 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
VIRTUAL TELECONFERENCE VIA ZOOM 

STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESSES: 
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

or 
https://cityofbrunswick-ga-gov.zoom.us/s/91797189705 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC HEARING - LAND USE 
1. Consider Approval of Rezoning Petition No. 21-04 & Annexation Petition No. 21-01, from Viper

Brunswick, LLC, Owner, Petitioning to Annex One Parcel of Land (0.73 Acres) into the City of 
Brunswick, and Rezone the Subject Parcel from R9 Single Family (R9) to Office Commercial 
(OC).(J. Hunter) (Encl. 1)

PUBLIC HEARING - ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE (New) 
2. Consider Approval of Alcohol License.  (R. Monday)

Name of Business Business 
Owner/Manager 

Business 
Address 

Permit Type 

H.R. Neighborhood Store Owner - Henry Phillip 1501 “G” Street  Retail sale of beer 

ITEM(S) TO BE CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL 
3. Consider Approval of October 20, 2021 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary 

changes.) (N. Atkinson) (Encl. 2)
4. Consider Approval of Financial Reports as of September 30, 2021.  (K. Mills) (Encl. 3)

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga
https://cityofbrunswick-ga-gov.zoom.us/s/91797189705


Page 2 
November 3, 2021 
City Commission Agenda 

5. Consider Approval of Enterprise Zone Incentives in the Central Business District Enterprise Zone for 
201 Gloucester Street.  (M. Hill) (Encl. 4)

6. Consider Approval of Health Insurance Renewal for City Employees Benefit Plan.  (R. McDuffie)
(Encl. 5)

APPOINTMENT(S) 
7. Board (N. Atkinson)

I. Tree Board – One Appointment
EXECUTIVE SESSION 



Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT: AX 21-01 & CU 21-04| 3399 Trout Street | Annex Parcel into the City 
Rezone from R9 to OC (Office Commercial) 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             11/03/21 

PURPOSE: See attached Staff Report 

HISTORY: 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  N/A 

 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

- Annexations require the adoption of an Ordinance, the purpose of this Public Hearing and 
Discussion is to bring the request to the City Commission.  Having heard the request, the 
City Commission should defer a decision on the Rezoning until the November 17th 
meeting, and instruct staff to publish the proposed Annexation Ordinance (draft attached 
in Staff Report).  Action on the requested Annexation and Rezoning would then take 
place at the November 17th meeting. 

DEPARTMENT: PDC  

Prepared by: John Hunter, Director 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                              

10/26/21



 
Rezoning Petition No. 21-04, & 
Annexation Petition No. 21-01 

 
(3399 Trout Street) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
John Hunter 

Director 
Planning, Development, & Codes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Brunswick 
Planning and Appeals Commission  

Public Hearing 
September 8, 2021 



Table of Contents 

Requested Land Use........................................................................................................................ 1 
Proposed Development........................................................................ ..............................................1 
Proposed Annexation .............................................................................. 2
Requested Zoning ................................................................................................................................3
Staff Analysis .................................................................................................................................. 3 
Staff Recommendation.................................................................................................................... 4 

Appendix A – zoning standards and policies .................................................................................. 6 
Appendix B – Office Commercial Code .................................................................................... ....9 
Appendix C – Application ............................................................................................................ 12 
Appendix D – Glynn County Response ..........................................................................................17 
Appendix E – Correspondence from the Public .............................................................................18 

Appendix F – Draft Annexation Ordinance ............................................................................... ....19



1 
 

Requested Land Use Approvals 
Viper Brunswick, LLC, owner, is petitioning to: 

1) Annex one parcel of land (0.73 Acres) into the City of Brunswick, and 
2) Rezone the subject parcel from R9 Single Family (R9) to Office Commercial (OC). 

 
 

Location map 
 

Proposed Development 
The owners of Jax Spine & Pain Centers will be operating their Brunswick Clinic at 3408 Trout 
Street and want to expand the existing parking as a part of their overall renovation of the 
building.   
The Jax Spine and Pain Center at 3408 Trout Street is located within the City of Brunswick. 
They own the adjacent parcel at 3399 Trout Street, which is located within unincorporated Glynn 
County.  County Staff recommended that the owners seek annexation to simplify building and 
zoning requirements for the planned renovations.  The annexed parcel will allow for the 
construction of 14 additional parking spaces to service the clinic.  The location of adjacent 
residential zoning to the north will require the maintenance of a vegetative buffer.  Site work and 
any proposed exterior changes to the building will need to conform to the Glynn Avenue Design 
Framework as the property will be added to the US 17 Overlay District. 



2 
 

 
Proposed Site Plan (Larger Version attached in Appendix XX) 

 
 

Proposed Annexation 
The location map on page 1 shows the parcels located within the City of Brunswick shaded in 
dark purple.  Properties in unincorporated Glynn County are not shaded.  The parcel under 
consideration is outlined in blue. 
 
Annexation will follow the 100% method as permitted by the official code of Georgia (O.C.G.A.  
36-36-1).  Written notice of the petition to annex property was given to Glynn County and they 
responded with no objections or development conditions.   
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

Proposed Rezoning 
The parcel is currently zoned R9 Single Family (R9) while the adjacent medical clinic is zoned 
Highway Commercial (HC).  As uses in R9 are limited to non-commercial activities, and the 
proposed parking expansion is an accessory use to a commercial use, a rezoning is required.  
 
 

 
Zoning Map 

Staff Analysis 
The proposed annexation will be beneficial to the property owner, as they will be able to operate 
within a single jurisdiction instead of two.  
When considering a rezoning, we refer back to the Character Areas within our Comprehensive 
Plan: 

Character Area:  North Brunswick/ Altama Avenue  
This northern portion of the City includes an irregularly shaped area primarily centered on 
Altama Avenue but also with frontage on Community Road/ Cypress Mill Road, and the Spur 
25. The development pattern here is very mixed with no one type of development predominating.  
The campus of the College of Coastal Georgia and Brunswick High School comprise mayor 
civic uses in this area.  Linear, auto-oriented commercial uses with scattered building sites and 
large parking areas are found along Altama Avenue, Community Road/ Cypress Mill Road, and 
the Spur 25.    
Two residential neighborhoods with curved buy connected street systems, Magnolia Park and 
College Park, are also part of this area.  These neighborhoods have well defined boundaries and 
consistent single-family development patterns but also offer proximity to nearby commercial and 
institutional services.    
 
 
 



4 
 

Vision  
The vision for the North Brunswick area is multi-layered, reflecting its land use diversity.  For 
the single-family neighborhoods of Magnolia Park and College Park, the vision is to preserve the 
character and boundaries of these suburban, single-family neighborhoods. For Altama and 
Community Road/Cypress Mill Road, the vision is for new, mixed-use, urban boulevards with 
active, pedestrian-oriented streetscapes. For Spur 25, the vision is for a major commercial 
corridor including big box retail with limited access to ensure transportation mobility.  It is also 
important to the North Brunswick community that it retain its institutional assets – the Coastal 
Georgia Community College, Brunswick High School, and Jane Macon Middle School. These 
institutional assets should be better connected with nearby neighborhoods and knit together with 
a connected framework of pedestrian and bicycle paths.   
 
Appropriate Land Uses 
•Single-family residential development within Magnolia Park and College Park 
•Community-scale commercial, institutional, multifamily, and mixed-use development along 
Altama Avenue and Community Road/ Cypress Mill Road 
•Regional-scale commercial development including big box development along Altama Avenue, 
Community Road/ Cypress Mill Road, and Spur 25 
•Industrial development on the western portions of Habersham 
 
Recommended Development Patterns 
 • Vertical, multi-story mixed-use development with retain on the ground floor along major 
corridors 
• Potential housing for college students developed in New Urbanist-style/ traditional 
neighborhood patterns along Altama Avenue, Community Road/ Cypress Mill Road, or US 17 
corridor 
• Clustering high-density development at nodes along major corridors 
• Greyfield redevelopment that converts vacant or underutilized commercial strips to mixed-use 
assets 
• Development that have easy access to nearby transit, shopping, schools, and other areas where 
residents travel daily 
• Single-family residential areas with strong boundaries and consistent massing, setbacks, and 
front yards 
• Preservation and enhancement of major institutions, such as high schools and colleges, along 
major corridors 
• Community facilities such as schools developed in a way that the entire community can share 
facilities such as meeting rooms, libraries, and playgrounds 
 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends in favor of granting the requested annexation and rezoning petitions.  The 
annexation and rezoning of the subject parcel will not have a negative impact on other City 
parcels. 

 



5 

Planning & Appeals Recommendation 
The Planning and Appeals Commission held a Public Hearing on the Annexation and Rezoning 
Requests on September 9, 2021.  No one spoke for or against the application.  The Rezoning 
requested by the applicant was Highway Commercial.  The PAC was concerned about the 
impacts of intensive HC zoning uses adjacent to R9 residential.  The PAC deferred their decision 
to the October 13 meeting, and asked staff to contact applicants to discuss reducing the zoning to 
Office Commercial.  The applicant agreed to reduce the requested zoning to Office Commercial. 

The Planning and Appeals Commission returned to the item at their October 13, 2021 meeting.  
With he applicant having revised their application and agreed to the Office Commercial zoning, 
the PAC voted to recommend that the City Commission approve the Annexation request and 
approve rezoning the parcel to Office Commercial. 



Appendix A – zoning standards and policies 

ZONING STANDARDS AND POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR ZONING HEARINGS 

Approved by the Commission City of Brunswick, Georgia 
April 5, 1989 

 Part I. Standards 

The current Georgia statutory law, O.C.G.A. ;s; 36-66-5(b) expressly mandates 
that each local government exercising zoning power establish and consider 
such factors in the form of substantive standards for zoning decisions. That 
subsection provides: 

[E]ach local government shall adopt standards governing the exercise of the
zoning power, and such standards may include any factors which the local
government finds relevant in balancing the interest in promoting the public
health, safety, morality, or general welfare against the right to the
unrestricted use of property. Such standards shall be printed and copies
thereof shall be available for distribution to the general public.

In keeping with the foregoing statutory requirement, the City of Brunswick 
has adopted the following substantive standards to govern its zoning 
decisions: 

A. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION OR CONDITIONAL USE REQUEST SHOULD BE
COMPATIBLE WITH EXISTING USES AND ZONING OF ADJACENT AND NEARBY PROPERTY, AND 
``SPOT ZONING'' SHOULD ALMOST ALWAYS BE REJECTED.

(1) Would the proposed rezoning create an isolated district unrelated to
adjacent and nearby districts? 

(2) Is the proposed rezoning a logical extension of a zoning boundary which
would improve the pattern of uses in the general area? 

B. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION SHOULD NOT DESTABILIZE THE SURROUNDING
NEIGHBORHOOD.

(1) Is the proposed zoning classification one which would promote integrity
of the neighborhood and preserve its general character? 

(2) Would the proposed rezoning precipitate similar rezoning requests which 
would generate or accelerate adverse land use changes in the neighborhood? 

C. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION SHOULD MAXIMIZE THE ECONOMIC VALUE OF THE 
SUBJECT PROPERTY WITHOUT DEPRECIATING THE VALUE OF ADJACENT AND NEARBY 
PROPERTY.

(1) To what extent does the existing zoning classification depress the value 
of the subject property?

6



7 

(2) To what extent would the proposed zoning classification result in
appreciation of the value of the property? 

(3) What effect does the existing zoning classification have on the values
of adjacent and nearby property? 

(4) What effect would the proposed zoning classification have on the values
of adjacent and nearby property? 

D. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION SHOULD NOT HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON
TRAFFIC FLOW, TRAFFIC SAFETY OR POPULATION DENSITY.

(1) Is there adequate public or private parking for the proposed use and
other uses permitted within the classification? 

(2) Would such uses create any problem of traffic congestion in the area?

(3) Would such uses create any traffic safety problem with regard to ingress
and egress, visibility or otherwise? 

(4) Would such uses necessitate changes in streets or sidewalks or traffic
signage or signalization? 

(5) Would such uses contribute to an undesirable level of population
density? 

(6) Would such uses substantially conflict with existing density patterns in
the neighborhood? 

E. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION SHOULD NOT HAVE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT.

(1) Would the proposed use or other uses permitted within the classification
create noise, dust, smoke or odors?

(2) Would such uses affect air quality or water quality and quantity?

(3) Would such uses create problems with drainage or soil erosion and
sedimentation? 

(4) Would such uses aggravate problems with flood damage control?

(5) Would such uses aggravate waste disposal problems?

F. A PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION SHOULD NOT HAVE ADVERSE AESTHETIC
EFFECTS.

(1) Would the proposed rezoning lead to removal of existing vegetation?

(2) Would the proposed use incorporate new planting?

(3) Would the proposed use necessitate unattractive structures or result in
removal or alteration of historic structures? 

(4) Would the proposed use be visually compatible with the surrounding
neighborhood? 



(5) Would the proposed use include machinery or work visible from the street
or neighboring property? 

(6) Would the proposed use be adequately separated from conflicting uses by
an appropriate buffer? 

G. A REZONING SHOULD NOT RESULT IN COSTS TO THE PUBLIC DISPROPORTIONATE TO
TAX REVENUES GENERATED BY THE PROPOSED USE.

(1) Would the rezoning increase the cost of government in providing public
utilities, schools, streets, police and fire protection, etc.? 

(2) What additional public facilities would be required?

(3) To what extent would such increased costs be offset by increased tax
revenues? 

H. THE SUBJECT PROPERTY SHOULD BE SUITABLE FOR THE ZONED PURPOSES.

(1) Is the property suitable for uses within the existing zoning
classification? 

(2) Has the property been vacant as zoned, and if so, for what period or
periods of time? 

(3) Are there substantial reasons why the property cannot be economically
used in accordance with existing zoning? 

(4) Would the proposed rezoning benefit the general public in any way?

(5) Would the proposed rezoning conform to or diverge from the comprehensive
land use plan? 

* *   *

It is obvious that the foregoing standards are very general, not at all 
specific, and that the public and private interests cannot be balanced with 
mathematical certainty in a zoning decision. Moreover, particular zoning 
issues which may arise, considered in context, may suggest concerns in 
addition to the foregoing standards and further questions which will need to 
be addressed by the Commission. It can only be said that any zoning decision, 
to be lawful, must be based on a relative gain to the public, as compared to 
the hardship imposed upon private parties. Such decisions must never be based 
simply upon the numbers of supporters or opponents or other political factors 
without consideration of the standards. 

(excerpt from addendum that was added to the zoning ordinance by the City 
Commission on April 5, 1989) 

8



9

ARTICLE VII. - OC OFFICE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

Sec. 23-7-1. - Intent of district. 

It is the intent of this section that the OC zoning district be developed and reserved for business, office, 
institutional, specified public, semi-public and residential purposes. The regulations which apply within this 
district are designed to encourage the formation and continuance of a quiet, compatible and uncongested 
environment for office-type business or professional firms intermingled with dwellings and certain public or 
semi-public uses and to discourage any encroachment by unrestricted retail and/or wholesale business 
establishments, industrial concerns or other uses capable of adversely affecting the specialized commercial 
institutional and housing character of the district.  

(Ord. No. 1006, § 1, 11-19-2008) 

Sec. 23-7-2. - Permitted uses.  

The following uses shall be permitted in any OC zoning district: 

(a) Business involving the rendering of a personal service, specifically including:

(1) Barber shop, beauty shop or combination thereof.

(2) Business school or college.

(3) Dressmaker, seamstress, tailor.

(4) Funeral home or mortuary.

(5) Insurance agency.

(6) Jewelry and watch repair shop.

(7) Medical, dental or chiropractic or other medically oriented office, clinic and/or laboratory.

(8) Office building and office for governmental, business, professional or general purposes, but
not including any storage, sale, rental or servicing of goods on the premises.

(9) Photographic studio.

(10) Radio and/or television studio.

(11) Real estate agency.

(12) School offering instruction in art, music, dancing, drama or similar cultural activity.

(13) Secretarial and/or telephone-answering service.

(14) Shoe repair shop.

(b) Any use permitted in a GR residential district under the conditions and requirements set forth in
sections 23-6-4 and 23-6-5.

(c) Hotel, tourist home and motel.

(d) Private or semi-private club, lodge, union hall or social center.

(e) Church.

(f) Accessory use in compliance with the provisions of section 23-3-17.

(g) Two-family dwelling, including patio dwelling in compliance with section 23-6-4.

(h) Multi-family dwelling in compliance with section 23-6-4.

APPENDIX B - OFFICE COMMERCIAL ZONING CODE



10 

(i) Townhouse dwelling in compliance with section 23-6-4.

(j) Group dwelling in compliance with section 23-6-4.

(k) Boarding house in compliance with section 23-6-4.

(l) One-family dwelling, attached in compliance with section 23-6-4.

(Ord. No. 1006, § 1, 11-19-2008; Ord. No. 1012, § 1, 9-2-2009) 

Sec. 23-7-3. - Conditional use.  

The following uses shall be permitted on a conditional use basis in any OC zoning district, subject to 
the conditions as set forth in section 23-25-4.  

(a) Pharmacy, apothecary, drug store, book, cigar and/or magazine shop, florist shop, gift shop, and
restaurant other than a drive-in, provided that such businesses are located and operated so as to
serve primarily nearby offices, tourist homes, apartment buildings and other permitted uses, no
outside loud speaker systems are utilized and all lights or lighting arrangements used for
purposes of advertising or night operations are directed away from adjoining or nearby residential
properties.

(b) Community hospitals or clinics, including any function such as cafeterias and laundries which
relate directly to the operation of the hospitals or clinics and are contained within the confines of
said hospital or clinic, provided such uses are in compliance with the provisions of section 23-17-
4.

(c) Any educational facilities directly related to an authorized hospital or the Glynn County Board of
Health, and under the supervision and control of an authorized hospital or the Glynn County Board
of Health, provided such uses are in compliance with the provisions of section 23-17-4.

(d) Single or multi-story dormitories or living quarters for the staff and/or student body of an
authorized hospital or its related activities, including eating and laundry facilities, provided such
dormitories and sleeping quarters are under the supervision and control of an authorized hospital,
and provided such uses are in compliance with the provisions of section 23-17-4.

(e) Automobile service station provided that operations involving major repairs, body and fender
work, painting or the sale or rental of new or used cars or trucks, trailers of any type, or boats,
are not conducted on the premises, the stations are located on property fronting on major streets,
as designated on the zoning map, all pumps are set back at least 25 feet from the right-of-way
line of abutting streets and parking and/or service areas are separated from adjoining residential
properties by a suitable planting screen, fence or wall at least six feet in height above finished
grade.

(f) All conditional uses permitted in the GR zoning district, as set forth in section 23-4-3 and subject
to all requirements pertaining to that district.

(g) Temporary use in compliance with the provisions of section 23-23-5.

(Ord. No. 1006, § 1, 11-19-2008; Ord. No. 1012, § 1, 9-2-2009) 

Sec. 23-7-4. - Other requirements.  

Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this chapter, uses permitted in OC office commercial zoning 
districts shall be required to conform to the following standards:  

(a) Minimum lot area: 4,000 square feet.

(b) Minimum lot width: 40 feet.



11

(c) Minimum front yard: Ten feet.

(d) Minimum side yard: None.

(e) Minimum rear yard: 15 feet.

(f) Maximum building height: 60 feet, subject to the approval of the fire chief.

(Ord. No. 1006, § 1, 11-19-2008) 



12 

Appendix C – Applications 







Y:
\P

ro
je

ct
 F

ile
s\

20
37

6\
D

W
G

\2
03

76
-2

.d
w

g,
 3

/1
5/

20
21

 1
:5

9:
45

 P
M

, P
D

F-
XC

ha
ng

e 
Pr

in
te

r 2
01

2



AutoCAD SHX Text
S 06°15'17" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°50'25" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
244.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
912-267-7839

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUNSWICK,     GEORGIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
J F K ARCHITECTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
357 OAK GROVE ISLAND DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS AT JOB SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPROVEMENTS & MODIFICATIONS EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAX SPINE & PAIN CENTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUNSWICK CLINIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3408 TROUT STREET, SUITE 100A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUNSWICK, GLYNN COUNTY, GEORGIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DIAGRAM, SITE LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS, NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
07 07 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
2020-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1" = 20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DIAGRAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TROUT STREET  (50'  R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 79°23'41" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING 4508 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEEL BUMPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEEL BUMPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2#4 BARS CONT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED IN PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" LONG #5 BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" LONG #5 BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED IN PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIN. SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP PARKING SIGNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOOTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  $500.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMIT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW-AWAY ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM FINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  $500.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOW-AWAY ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAN PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" LETTERING (WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUE BACKGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMBOL OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERNATIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL POST DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT OUT, DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  CUT OUT, DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND CUT OUT, DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  OUT, DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND OUT, DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND DEMO, REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND REMOVE EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND EXISTING CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND CONCRETE SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND SLAB AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND AS NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND NECESSARY TO EXTENDED AND  TO EXTENDED AND TO EXTENDED AND  EXTENDED AND EXTENDED AND  AND AND CONSTRUCT NEW RAMP, STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  NEW RAMP, STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT NEW RAMP, STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  RAMP, STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT RAMP, STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT STEPS AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT AND PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT PLATFORM.  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT   REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT REMOVE EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT EXISTING SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT SHURBS AND CONSTRUCT  AND CONSTRUCT AND CONSTRUCT  CONSTRUCT CONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO POUR NEW CONCRETE WALK TO STEPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THESE DRAWINGS REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION THESE DRAWINGS REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  DRAWINGS REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION DRAWINGS REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION REFLECT DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION DIAGRAMMATIC LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION LAYOUT & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION & DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION DO NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION NOT NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION NECESSARILY CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION CONTAIN EXACT INFORMATION  EXACT INFORMATION EXACT INFORMATION  INFORMATION INFORMATION NEEDED TO CONSTRUCT BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  TO CONSTRUCT BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, TO CONSTRUCT BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  CONSTRUCT BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, CONSTRUCT BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, IMPROVEMENTS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, SITE IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, IMPROVEMENTS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, GRADING, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS, DRIVE ENTRANCES, WALKS,  ENTRANCES, WALKS, ENTRANCES, WALKS,  WALKS, WALKS, PARKING IMPROVEMENTS AND UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  IMPROVEMENTS AND UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS IMPROVEMENTS AND UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  AND UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS AND UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS   THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS THE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS IS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS TO CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS CONFIRM EXISTING CONDITIONS  EXISTING CONDITIONS EXISTING CONDITIONS  CONDITIONS CONDITIONS WITH LAYOUT AND DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  LAYOUT AND DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES LAYOUT AND DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  AND DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES AND DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES DESIGN.  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES   ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES LOCAL, STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES STATE & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES & FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES FEDERAL CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES CODES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES SHALL BE USED AS GUIDELINES  BE USED AS GUIDELINES BE USED AS GUIDELINES  USED AS GUIDELINES USED AS GUIDELINES  AS GUIDELINES AS GUIDELINES  GUIDELINES GUIDELINES FOR CONSTRUCTION. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM ALL SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM SITE CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM CONDITIONS AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM AND TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM TREE LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM LOCATIONS AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM AND THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM THEIR RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  RELATED ROOT SYSTEM RELATED ROOT SYSTEM  ROOT SYSTEM ROOT SYSTEM  SYSTEM SYSTEM PRIOR TO BIDDING PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  TO BIDDING PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF TO BIDDING PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  BIDDING PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF BIDDING PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF PROJECT AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF AND CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF   CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF CONTRACTOR SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF SHALL FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF FAMILIARIZE HIMSELF  HIMSELF HIMSELF WITH SOIL CONDITIONS. 3. EROSION CONTROL, CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND EROSION CONTROL, CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  CONTROL, CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND CONTROL, CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND PRIOR TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND TO DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND DISTURBING THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND THE SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND SITE SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND SHALL CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND CONSTRUCT SILT FENCING AROUND  SILT FENCING AROUND SILT FENCING AROUND  FENCING AROUND FENCING AROUND  AROUND AROUND PERIMETER OF THE SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  OF THE SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW OF THE SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  THE SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW THE SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW SITE AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW AND MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW MAINTAIN DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW DURING ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW ENTIRE DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW DURATION OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW OF CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW  CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW CONSTRUCTION.  AT EXISTING AND NEW   AT EXISTING AND NEW  AT EXISTING AND NEW AT EXISTING AND NEW  EXISTING AND NEW EXISTING AND NEW  AND NEW AND NEW  NEW NEW STORM DRAIN INLETS INSTALL HAY BAIL DAM.   7. PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  STRIPING SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE STRIPING SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE SHALL BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE   HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  BE PAINTED BLUE, THE BE PAINTED BLUE, THE  PAINTED BLUE, THE PAINTED BLUE, THE  BLUE, THE BLUE, THE  THE THE SYMBOL WHITE AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  WHITE AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE WHITE AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE   ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE  STRIPPING SHALL BE STRIPPING SHALL BE  SHALL BE SHALL BE  BE BE REFLECTING TYPE THERMO PLASTIC W/ GLASS BEADS ADDITIVE. .

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENT TAGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE WASH AND CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  WASH AND CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD WASH AND CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  AND CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD AND CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD CLEAN EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD EXISTING PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD PAVING, CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD CONSTRUCT AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD AND INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD INSTALL STRIPPING STANDARD  STRIPPING STANDARD STRIPPING STANDARD  STANDARD STANDARD PARKING AND HANDICAP PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  AND HANDICAP PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE AND HANDICAP PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  HANDICAP PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE HANDICAP PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE PARKING AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE AREA WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE WITH SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE SIGNAGE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE AS DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE DETAILED.  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE   PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE PAVEMENT STRIPING SHALL BE  STRIPING SHALL BE STRIPING SHALL BE  SHALL BE SHALL BE  BE BE 4" YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND YELLOW LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND LINES.  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND   HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND HANDICAP SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND SPACE THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND THE FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND FIELD SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND SHALL BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND BE PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND PAINTED BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND BLUE, THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  THE WHITE SYMBOL AND THE WHITE SYMBOL AND  WHITE SYMBOL AND WHITE SYMBOL AND  SYMBOL AND SYMBOL AND  AND AND ACCESS AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE AREA STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE STRIPPED YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE YELLOW LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE LINES AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE AT 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE 24" O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE O.C.  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE   ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE ALL STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE STRIPPING SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE SHALL BE REFLECTING TYPE  BE REFLECTING TYPE BE REFLECTING TYPE  REFLECTING TYPE REFLECTING TYPE  TYPE TYPE THERMO PLASTIC W/ GLASS BEADS ADDITIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPROVEMENTS & MODIFICATION EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAX SPINE & PAIN CENTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3408 TROUT STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUNSWICK, GLYNN COUNTY, GEORGIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUNSWICK CLINIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,508 sq ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,564 sq ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
944 sq ft

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 10°03'20" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°40'54" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
241.47'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 10°48'22" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
132.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 71%%D20'30" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 75%%D32'54" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 69%%D58'52" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.92'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 48%%D21'47" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 70%%D30'21" W

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING TREES AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  EXISTING TREES AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, EXISTING TREES AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  TREES AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, TREES AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, AND UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, UNDER BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, BRUSH, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, STRIP TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, TOP SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, SOIL, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, PROOF ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE, ROLL/COMPACT SUBGRADE,  SUBGRADE, SUBGRADE, INSTALL COMPACTED STRUCTURAL FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  COMPACTED STRUCTURAL FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING COMPACTED STRUCTURAL FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  STRUCTURAL FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING STRUCTURAL FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING FILL AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING AND CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING CONSTRUCT/EXTEND PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING  AREA.  INSTALL PARKING AREA.  INSTALL PARKING   INSTALL PARKING  INSTALL PARKING INSTALL PARKING  PARKING PARKING STRIPPING.  REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEER DRAWINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFER TO SURVEY FOR LOCATION OF CMPA LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE EXISTING CIRCLE DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  EXISTING CIRCLE DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW EXISTING CIRCLE DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  CIRCLE DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW CIRCLE DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW DRIVE, RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW RECONSTRUCT EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW EARTHWORK AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT NEW  TO CONSTRUCT NEW TO CONSTRUCT NEW  CONSTRUCT NEW CONSTRUCT NEW  NEW NEW CIRCLE DRIVE AND RETAINING WALL.  REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEER DRAWINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' FENCE SOLID

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW PARKING



17 

Appendix D – Glynn County Response 



18 

Appendix E – correspondence from the public 



Appendix F 

ORDINANCE XXX 

AN ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR ANNEXATION 
OF PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE PETITION OF 
VIPER BRUNSWICK LLC, DATED JULY 12, 2021; TO 
PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN  
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

THE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BRUNSWICK HERBY ORDAINS, 

SECTION ONE 

The petitions of Viper Brunswick LLC dated July 12, 2021 seeking to have certain 

parcels of land annexed into the City of Brunswick, copies of which are attached to this 

Ordinance as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein as if fully repeated verbatim within this 

Ordinance, are granted and approved by the City Commission of the City of Brunswick.  

The parcels of real property described therein are hereby annexed into and made a part of 

the City of Brunswick pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 36 of Title 36 of the Official Code of 

Georgia Annotated, said parcels being contiguous to existing corporate limits of the City of 

Brunswick, as defined in O.C.G.A §36-26-20, and Glynn County having withdrawn any 

objection to said annexation. 

SECTION TWO 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

SECTION THREE 

It is the intention of the City Commission in adopting this ordinance that should any 

paragraph, phrase, clause, word or other part hereof be adjudicated invalid under state or federal 

law, then any remaining portions of the ordinance shall remain in effect and be enforced to the 

extent reasonable consistent with the purposes hereof. 

19 



20 

SECTION FOUR 
This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its approval by the City Commission. 

Ordinance XXX approved this XXX day of XXX, 2021. 

______________________ 
Cornell L. Harvey, Mayor 

Attest: _____________________ 
Naomi Atkinson, City Clerk 



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BRUNSWICK, GEORGIA 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBERR 20, 2021 

HYBRID 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESSES:  

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
or 

https://cityofbrunswick-ga-gov.zoom.us/s/97473906489 

 
PRESENT:   Honorable Mayor Cornell Harvey ~in person, Mayor Pro-Tem Felicia Harris ~via  
                              zoom, Commissioner John Cason III ~via zoom, Commissioner Julie Martin ~via zoom,     
                      and Commissioner Vincent Williams  ~in person 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Harvey - meeting begin at 6:01 p.m. 
INVOCATION:  Commissioner Vincent Williams 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Recited by Mayor Harvey 
ADDENDUM TO AGENDA 

** 
Commissioner Williams made a motion to add as item number eleven (11) “Consider Approval of a 
Location Permitting Agreement Between the City of Brunswick and Kimoyo Productions II, LLC”; 
seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 

** 
Commissioner Williams made a motion to add as item number twelve (12) “Consider Approval of the 
City of Brunswick Submission to the Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement”; seconded by 
Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 

** 
 

~City Manager McDuffie introduced newly hired Human Resources Manager Sagrario Thomas.~ 

PRESENTATION 
1. Supervisor of Board of Elections and Registration Christopher Channell to give a Presentation  
    Regarding Proposed Redistricting of City Ward Boundaries. 
    Following questions/responses; the commission thanked Mr. Channell for the presentation. 
    It was the consensus of the commission to have City Manager McDuffie form a taskforce to look  
    at a proposed redistricting of the cities ward boundaries and report back to the commission before  
    the end of the year. 
PUBLIC HEARING(S) – ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
2. Amendment to Chapter 23 of the Code of the City of Brunswick Pertaining to Zoning; Particularly  
    the Provisions Relating to Signs and Advertising Devices.  (J. Hunter)  
    Mayor Harvey opened the floor for anyone wanting to speak in favor or opposition of the above- 
    referenced proposed ordinance. 
    No one came forth to address the commission. 

~Public Hearing Closed~ 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga
https://cityofbrunswick-ga-gov.zoom.us/s/97473906489


2 
 

 
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE – (Renewals)  
3. Consider Approval of Two Alcohol License Renewals.  (R. Monday) 

Name of 
Business 

Business 
Owner/Manager 

Business 
Address 

Permit Type 
 

5 De-Mayo 
Mexican Grill  

Owner: Abel Garcia 
Manager: Yasima 
Castaneda  

2809 Glynn Ave.   On premise consumption of 
beer, wine, and distilled 
spirits 

Tropical Island 
Grocery  

Owner: Sunil Patel  2500 Norwich St.   Retail sale of beer only  

      Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced alcohol license renewals 
      seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
ITEM(S) TO BE CONSIDERED FOR APPROVAL 
4.  Consider Approval of October 6, 2021 Work Session and Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.         
     (subject to any necessary changes.) (N. Atkinson) 
     Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
     Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
5.  Consider Approval and Execution of a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of   
     Brunswick and the Golden Isles Development Authority. (M. Hill) 
     Commissioner Williams made a motion to approve the above-referenced Memorandum of  
     Understanding; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5  
     to 0. 
6.  Consider Approval of Request for Proposals for a New Fire Aerial Truck.  (R. Mobley)   
     Commissioner Williams made a motion to approve the above-referenced request; seconded by  
     Commissioner Martin.   
     Mayor Harvey called for a vote from City Clerk Atkinson: 
 Commissioner Cason    Yes 
 Commissioner Martin    Yes 
 Commissioner Williams   Yes 
 Mayor Pro Tem Harris    Yes 
 Mayor Harvey     Yes 
     Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
7.  Consider Approval of Agreement with Goodwyn Mills Cawood for Project Design and Grant       
     Administration Supporting the Georgia EPD 319 Grant for GI/LID Retrofits in Brunswick.  (G.  
     Alberson) 
     Commissioner Cason made a motion authorizing the Mayor to sign the above-referenced            
     agreement in the amount of $64,000; seconded by Commissioner Williams.  Motion passed  
     unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
8.  Consider Approval of Agreement with EMC Engineering Services, Inc. for Project Design of 
     Phase II Improvements at Mary Ross Waterfront Park. (G. Alberson) 
     Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve the above-referenced agreement in the amount of  
     $58,300; seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
CITY ATTORNEY’S ITEM(S) 
9.  Consider Adoption of Ordinance No. 1071 – Amendment to Chapter 23 of the Code of the City  
     of Brunswick Pertaining to Zoning; Particularly the Provisions Relating to Signs and Advertising   
     Devices. 
     Commissioner Williams made a motion to adopt the above-referenced ordinance; seconded by  
     Commissioner Martin.   



3 
 

     Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
10.Consider Approval of Cost-Sharing Agreement Between the City of Brunswick and Glynn          
     County.   
     Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve the above-referenced agreement; seconded by  
     Commissioner Williams.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
11.Consider Approval of a Location Permitting Agreement Between the City of Brunswick and  
     Kimoyo Productions II, LLC.  
     Commissioner Williams made a motion to approve the above-referenced agreement; seconded by  
     Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
12.Consider Approval of the City of Brunswick Submission to the Statewide Mutual Aid and  
     Assistance Agreement.   
     Commissioner Williams made a motion to approve the above-referenced agreement; seconded by  
     Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
There was not an executive session held during this meeting. 
 
Commissioner Martin made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion 
passed unanimously by a vote of 5 to 0. 
MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 8:46 p.m. 
 
 
        /s/Cornell L. Harvey   
        Cornell L. Harvey, Mayor  
      
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson   
            Naomi D. Atkinson, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 













 

 

SUBJECT: Enterprise Zone Incentive for 201 Gloucester Street 

COMMISSION AGENDA:   November 3, 2021 Consent Agenda  

PURPOSE: Consider approval of Enterprise Zone Incentives in the CBD Enterprise Zone for 201 

Gloucester Street. 

HISTORY: The Commission approved Enterprise Zones in the City of Brunswick on November 19, 

2014. Enterprise Zones were established under the “Enterprise Zone Employment Act of 1997” for the 

State of Georgia. This legislation allowed municipalities to name certain areas as “Enterprise Zones” and 

permit incentives for economic development in those zones. Enterprise Zones help create the proper 

economic and social environment to induce the investment of private resources in productive business 

enterprises and service enterprises. 

FACTS AND ISSUES:  Bay & Gloucester LLC has submitted an Enterprise Zone application for the 

building rehabilitation project located at 201 Gloucester Street (The Leotis Building / Port City Lofts). 

This location is in the CBD Enterprise Zone. The developers are requesting the following incentives for 

these new businesses & rehabilitation: 

  1. Abate Building Permit Fees (including plan review). 

  2. Abate Business License Administration Fees for the first year. 

  3. Abate Sign permit fees. 

 4. Abate City Property Taxes 

BUDGET INFORMATION: Fees are waived for the first year of operation. These fees for this applicant 

total approximately $56,867.42. City Property Tax abatement is for up to 10 years at the discretion of the 

City Commission. Property Tax abatement is estimated to be $7,931.40 annually or $61,864.92 over 10 

years. 

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the Incentives as presented. 2. Approve the recommended list of incentives. 3. Do 

not recommend the incentives. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: The Enterprise Zone application has been 

reviewed by the Planning, Development & Codes, Engineering and Finance departments. All departments 

recommend approval of the incentives. The Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors 

reviewed the application at their October meeting and recommended the incentives as applied for. The 

Finance Committee reviewed the application at their October meeting. The City Manager has reviewed 

the application and recommends that the Fees be waived and the property tax be abated on the 10 year 

schedule. The Finance Committee concurs with the recommendations by the DDA Board and City 

Manager to approve the abatements on the following schedule. 

DEPARTMENT: 

Prepared by: Mathew Hill, DDA; 

ADMINISTRATION 

Approved by: Regina McDuffie, City Manager; 

Date: 

/s Mathew Hill 10/25/2021

10/26/21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













Garrow Alberson X

X



















Page | 1 
 

 

SUBJECT:  Health Insurance Renewal for City Employees Benefit Plan  

 

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:             November 3, 2021 

PURPOSE: To provide a well-qualified benefit plan for City of Brunswick employees. 

HISTORY:  

1. Annually, the City’s reinsurance for group health care coverage must be 
renegotiated. Our current policy expires on December 31, 2021.  

2. The City’s Group Health Insurance is self-insured. To protect the City from 
catastrophic losses, reinsurance is purchased to pay in excess of large claims. The 
reinsurance policy reimburses the City of any specific claim that exceeds $80,000.  

3. The attachment shows the City’s historic cost to date and the multiple medical 
markets that were approached. 

FACTS AND ISSUES: The City’s current carrier is Nationwide with access to Cigna 
Network Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).   

The City’s current carrier has offered a renewal rate of $______________ for the Annual 
Fixed Plan Costs. This is a ____________________ from 2020. 

 

BUDGET INFORMATION: N/A 

 

OPTIONS: 

1. Approve the health insurance plan as presented and recommended.   

2. Do not approve the health insurance plan as presented and recommended.   

3. Take no action at this time. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Approve the health insurance plan as presented and recommended.   

DEPARTMENT:  City Manager’s Office   



Page | 2 
 

 

Prepared by: Regina M McDuffie   

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

No additional comment.   

 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

Approve the health insurance plan as presented and recommended.   

 

________________________________    ________________________ 

City Manager                                                                                      Date                   
      

10/26/21


	Agenda
	Encl. 1
	Encl. 2
	Encl. 3
	Encl. 4
	Encl. 5



